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Ag1u0yan19n153u o FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

gmzmemsﬁu (@uu) Financial Status (Baht millions)

ﬁuﬂ%’Wﬂ(mN Total assets 831 781 1,241 1,333 1,214
Qﬂwf:mi ﬂy1(q1/1 %) Total accounts receivable, net 58 89 63 67 71
ﬁlﬁu 91A19 uazqﬂﬂﬁ a* Property, plant & equipment, net* 607 625 655 891 948
wﬁﬁus 2 Total liabilities 84 226 190 160 124
e'r’;umawjﬁ mgyui 74 Total shareholders' equity 747 555 1,051 1,173 1,091

walsznoums (@amum) Operating Performance (Baht millions)

iwllﬂymﬂmi‘lnﬂ Sales 1,443 1,589 1,955 2,549 2,112
swllﬁymu Total revenues 1,444 1,596 1,959 2,552 2,118
Swiiwi’m Total expenses 1,232 1,372 1,545 2,158 1,909
mls ‘ﬁju@;’u Gross profit margin 352 364 545 544 358
ﬁfliﬂ'@uﬁﬂmﬁﬁuvl@:ﬁauﬂﬂa Earnings before income Tax 212 224 414 394 209
mﬁﬁu”l;ﬁauﬂﬂa Corporate income tax 5 1 14 9 9
ﬁf[lifm% Net profit 207 223 400 385 200

9M351@3¥NMaIM359u Financial Ratios

m'ls (°1J11/I/°|/iu) Earnings (Baht/Share) 2.50 2.69  4.76* 4.10 2.13
1l5g mﬁmmmﬂuwa (um/wu) Dividend Declared (Baht/Share) 1.75 475  3.50 3.00  2.00%
uammwmwawu (‘um/wu) Book Value (Baht/Share) 9.02 6.70 12.49@ 12.47 11.60
m"liammﬂiw"lmm Net Profit margin (%) 1434% 13.97% 2042% 15.10%  9.45%
ammamammumﬂﬁumwﬂmmﬂaﬂ (%) Return On Assets (%) 2541%  27.67% 32.26% 28.90% 16.49%
ammammmumamummNnawumaﬂ (%) Return on shareholders' equity (%) 28.59%  34.25% 38.09% 32.86% 18.37%
ammauwuaummummwawu (wn) Debt to Equity Ratio (Times) 0.11 0.41 0.18 0.14 0.11

UEREE] ﬂi‘uﬂ?m“iu@Lmvammiﬂmnmmufmmimvaﬂm‘m Lﬂuaummmm
- miimwuw 4.76 UM mmmfmnmimLﬂawawunaum‘n@mm‘lummwanmm |79 82,851,200 uutmmuummnm‘nﬂ“mﬂ'lummmuanmswa
‘lumaqummw 2546 47471 94,000,000 Y114
+ luReudsnau 2546 ummwuﬂuumwwmqmwuﬁ 2.- 17 41311 82,851,200 viu Lm“uuav 1.50 1 d11131 94,000,000 uu‘lumﬂqui:fmﬂu 2547
@ AMMInAINAWIWURRE 84,134,076 U
# lupauiuensu 2548 uiwm'ﬂNuﬂuumwmamwum 1.30 UM u,'a.»%m'ﬂNuﬂuuﬂmuﬂnmawum 0.70 U T ung AN 2549

Note : * Fixed assets restated 2001 - 2005 to exclude sparepart inventories.
** based on weighted average 84,134,076 shares, which follows the increase from 82,851,200 shares to 94,000,000 shares at the time of IPO in November 2003
+ Interim dividend was 2 Baht/share paid in August 2003 for 82,851,200 shares, with a final dividend of 1.50 Baht/share for 94,000,000 shares paid in May 2004
@ based on weighted average of 84,134,076 shares
# Interim dividend was 1.30 Baht/share paid in September 2005, with a final dividend of 0.70 Baht/share to be paid in May 20086, subject to Shareholder approval.
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UTEN gﬁmﬁ%ﬁ‘ﬁuﬂm(u 110 (UHIBU)
68/2 ounlFiins aanaaliy suneidesgiin Suiagiia 83000 Yszmelne
e an:
duinauuazlsanuaena: 258 sﬁyﬂ.m. 8-9 LUBIEN-UMANEN SUNBB1IEN N5ETI 81110
TN3ANN 075-634-634 Tn3e13 075-681-124
mndaenszen:
T390 TOPI: 231 auualarenszen-nszuas sunetlatowszen nse 81160
TN3ANN 075-611-978-9 Tn3a5 075-611-978-9
NNy
Tsanudiu: 142 iy 1 danalnsnes sunediy nsed 81120
TN3fNN 075-618-141 T3 a3 075-618-141
www.univanich.com
info@univanich.com
0107543000066
u?ﬁmﬂug;wamLmzﬁmli1ﬂifﬁuﬂmfuﬁniﬂaﬁmuﬂm(n Tssnmadmhiihaudu
wazrhiumdalnhaudy ﬁwﬁaENm?ﬁmmzﬁ@m1ﬁu€ﬂ1a{mﬂmmmmm
TaowansumidnvesEmidad
1. ﬁ’wﬁuﬂmyuﬁu (Crude Palm Oil)
2 dhiumdaluthaudy (Crude Palm Kernel Oil)
3. waalnhay (Palm Kernels)
4. mﬂmaﬂ‘luﬂmu (Palm Kemnel Cake)
5. maﬂ‘wuﬁuamunmﬂmn (Palm Seeds and Seedlings)
wuﬁmm 94,000,000 wu
470 AN
5.00 UM

L4 4 £ rd v
VSEN guosurnrannswe (WUszimalne) 9da $u 7 oxmsaaiananninenralszma lne 62 ouussanmn uvrnasung
WAAABUAY NTUNN 10110 TNTFANN 0-2229-2800 TN3e15 0-2359-1262-3

UNFITIU ﬂiﬂﬂlIﬂJ Wﬁﬂﬂﬂﬂl%iﬂﬂuﬂﬂﬁ La"U‘V] 3371
UTHN ‘lWEGﬁﬁﬂlﬁ@iLmﬁﬂ!ﬂ@iﬁ olipwd 1100 “Iﬂ! 15 'UNﬂE]ﬂ“WI‘VInl’JE]i 179/74-80 ﬂuuﬁ?ﬁialﬁ NFUNNWA 10120
T‘Vliﬁ‘W‘VI 0-2344-1000, 0-2286-9999 Tnses 0-2286-0500, 0-2286-0600

ﬁmm'!a Tnsdivn E-mail
ﬂiillmi Wi]ﬂmi 075 634 634 €°’;EJ 111 john.clendon@univanich.com
mﬂmimﬂw1m"]ﬂﬂ 075 634 634 G;EJ 222 anucha.s@univanich.com
;j%ﬂmmtyﬁmmmi 075 634 634 Gi’é) 237 khanang.b@univanich.com




(GENERAL INFORMATION

Name
Registered Head Office

Operational Headquarters

Web Site

e-mail address
Registered No.
Type of Business

Registered Capital
Registered Paid-up Capital
Par Value per Share

Other References
Share Registrar

Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited
68/2 Patipat Road, Taladyai, Phuket 83000, Thailand

Aoluk Branch:

HQ Offices and Siam Factory: 258 Aoluk-Laemsak Road, Aoluk, Krabi 81110
Tel: 075-634-634, Facsimile: 075-681-124

Plai Phraya Branch:

TOPI Factory: 231 PlaiPhraya-Pasaeng Road, Plaipaya, Krabi 81160

Tel: 075-611-978-9, Facsimile: 075-611-978-9

Lamthap Branch:

Lamthap Factory: 142 Moo 1 Tambol Toongsaitong, Lamthap District, Krabi 81120
Tel & Facsimile: 075-618-141

www.univanich.com
info@univanich.com
0107543000066
Oil palm plantations and crushing mills, oil palm research and seed production.
The Company's main products comprise:
1. Crude Palm Oil ("CPO")
2. Crude Palm Kernel Oil ("PKO")
3. Palm Kernels ("PK")
4. Palm Kernel Cake ("PKC")
5. Hybrid Oil Palm Seeds and Seedlings

94,000,000 common shares
Baht 470 million

Baht 5.00

Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited 62 The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building, 7th Floor,
Rachadapisek Road, Klongtoey, Bangkok 10110 Telephone: 0-2229-2800 Facsimile 0-2359-1262-3

Auditor

Miss Suwannee Bhuripanyo Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 3371 of PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Limited
15th Floor, Bangkok City Tower, 179/74-80 South Sathorn Road, Bangkok 10120
Telephone 0-2344-1000, 0-2286-9999 Facsimile 0-2286-0500, 0-2286-0600

Investor Relations
Name
Mr John Clendon
Mr Anucha Supakorn
Ms Khanang Buranavisetkul

Position Telephone E-mail
Managing Director 075 634 634 Ext 111 john.clendon@univanich.com
Commercial Manager 075 634 634 Ext 222 anucha.s@univanich.com

Management Accountant 075 634 634 Ext 237  khanang.b@univanich.com
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UTHN ﬂmmﬁnumuﬂmw 0A (UIFU) ("mtm" 30 "giN1Y") Lﬂumwmﬁmmmﬁmuﬁﬁ)mi a1 Juft 26 FuAw
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° mwmmmmmumiﬂanmu1J1a11umusl,umwmﬂswma £ I Hnuimnzalgnlsznm 37,334 15 (5,973
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COMPANY PROFILE

Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited (the "Company" or "Univanich") was established on 26th December
1995 as an amalgamation of three of Thailand's pioneer palm oil companies. The three companies were:

@ Thai Oil Palm Industry and Estate Company Limited,

e Siam Palm Oil and Refinery Industry Company Limited,

e Hup Huat Palm Oil Industry Company Limited.

Univanich is one of Thailand's leading producers of crude palm oil ("CPO") and crude palm kernel oil ("PKO").
Palm oils are important raw ingredients in the manufacture of cooking oils and salad oils, margarines and shortening,
snack foods, icecreams, soaps, shampoos and cosmetics. A byproduct from the production of PKO is palm kernel cake
("PKC") which is used in animal feeds.

The main features of the Company's business are as follows :

e Univanich operates oil palm plantations in Krabi and Suratthani Provinces of Southern Thailand, with an
average planted area in 2005 of 37,334 rai (5,973 hectares). The first plantations were established in 1969 and
replanting of a new generation of palms commenced in 1992. The Company has now achieved a balanced age
profile of palms with approximately 4% of the area routinely replanted each year.

e In 2005, the Company's plantations produced 19.5% of the total volume of fresh fruit bunches ("FFB")
processed by the Companys factories, with 80.5% of FFB being purchased from outgrower farmers. The
overall planted area of oil palms in Thailand is expanding rapidly and it is this expansion of small-holder
plantings that is fueling the Company's long-term growth.

@ Univanich has three palm oil crushing mills, all located in Krabi Province. The commissioning of the third
Univanich crushing mill in October 2004 increased the company's FFB processing capacity from 90 tonnes to
135 tonnes FFB per hour. In 2005, these factories processed 505,406 tonnes of FFB.

e Univanich operates a palm oil exporting facility at the deep-water port of Laemphong in Krabi Province. In
2005, by value, 16% of the Company's sales of crude palm oils were to export markets.

e Univanich operates a Research and Development Department which is a leader in oil palm research in Thailand.
The Company's advanced palm breeding programme produces high yielding hybrid seeds for our own replanting
programme and for sale to oil palm farmers, both locally and overseas. In 2005, the Company constructed
Thailand's first laboratory for oil palm tissue culture, as an extension of the breeding programme.

@ Univanich employs 1,023 people and is professionally managed to an international standard established during
15 years of joint venture with Unilever PLC. From 1983 to 1998, when Unilever held a 51% shareholding in
Univanich, the business was managed through Unilever's International Plantations and Plant Science Group,
based in Cambridge, UK.

@ The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand on 25th November 2003 under the abbreviation
UVAN.
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CHAIRMAN’S REPORT

Consumption of the world's main edible oils and fats has grown by a remarkable 7.1 million tonnes during the past
year, to total 143.8 million tonnes. Increased food consumption made up 4.5 million tonnes of this growth. Another 2.6
million tonnes was required for new consumption in the biofuel and biodiesel industries. The palm oil industry is now the
world's main source of edible oils, supplying 34% of this global requirement.

For food consumption, demand growth for edible oils and fats is coming mainly from the developing economies
of Asia. The markets of China, India and Indonesia together comprise 40% of the world's population. Currently these
markets consume below the global average but their consumption is rising rapidly. China alone imported 4.3 million
tonnes of palm oil in 2005, an increase of 12% over the previous year. This figure is forecast to increase to 4.8 million
tonnes in 2006, another annual growth of nearly 12%.

Vegetable oils are increasingly consumed as biofuels for electricity generation and for the manufacture of biodiesel.
In the EU, biodiesel capacity has surged from 1.9 million tonnes in 2002, to 4.5 million tonnes in 2006. World capacity,
including new biodiesel plants now under construction, is expected to reach 13.5 million tonnes by 2007.

For these reasons of high consumption growth and new biodiesel demand, we remain confident about the future
of palm oil in global markets. Univanich has been developing overseas customers and export capability for the time when
Thailand will become a significant exporter to these markets. The question now is whether or not Thailand's approaching
surplus of palm oil production will be exported or consumed locally as biodiesel and biofuel.

The 2005 season was a disappointing year for the local palm oil industry I A A, E“_m’

due to the severe drought which depressed palm yields and processing margins. Palm Oil Production by Univanich
Nevertheless, Univanich came through this difficult period in very good shape [gmmw]
and we look forward to increasing our production in the year ahead. 8
Univanich hybrid oil palm seeds are receiving much interest from export 0 %2 F
customers as well as local farmers. As part of our commitment to a world class 2
breeding programme, in 2005 the Board has endorsed proposals for research "
into oil palm tissue culture. We believe that clonal oil palms will be the next
important step forward in increasing oil palm yields. Univanich plans to be at " s || |
the forefront of this new development but, like oil palm breeding which takes
generations to develop, oil palm tissue culture will also require a long term . mazn
research committment. m
On behalf of the Board of Directors, | congratulate our management
team on another year of very good achievement. I would also like to thank our u

OO 15T WEE 1983 1904 1995 1006 17 1966 100 MO0 201 K@ 208 MM M

shareholders for their continuing support and for their interest in the % -

development of the Univanich business.

o

Apirag Vanich
Chairman
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committee of Univanich Palm Oil PCL was established by resolution of the Board of Directors on 29
July 2003. Three Independent Directors were appointed to the Committee, as follows;

Mr Suchad Chiaranussati : Chairman of Audit Committee
Mr Tanate Phutrakul : Member of Audit Committee
Ms Supapang Chanlongbutra : Member of Audit Committee

Details of the scope of duties of the Audit Committee, as defined by the Board of Directors, may be found within
the Company's Annual Report.

In 2005, the Audit Committee once again engaged the audit firm of BDO Richfield Limited to carry out further
internal audit tests. The main focus was a review of payrolls and payroll systems. During the review and testing process,
the BDO Richfield auditors worked closely with the company's internal audit team to assist the company develop internal
audit capabilities. Their review, which was based on trial sampling, included examining the supporting evidence, observing,
interviewing and re-performing.

Following this review the internal audit report indicated that the company's Human Resource and Payroll Activity
has been operated satisfactorily; and there are just a few areas where controls can be enhanced. The internal audit report
also included follow-up on the previously agreed action plan for the company's purchased fruit activities. This concluded
that the agreed actions had been implemented or were being implemented as planned.

The Audit Committee accepted the report of the Internal Auditors which was also accepted by the company's
senior management.

During 2005, the Audit Committee held four meetings. The Committee also reviewed and recommended to the
Board the Quarterly Financial Statements prepared by the external auditor.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Annual Financial Statements together with the company's management
and with the external auditor. The Audit Committee is of the opinion that the Annual Financial Statements present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2005 and
2004, including the results of the company's operations and its cash flows for those years, in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

The Audit Committee is of the opinion that the management of the company has performed its duties in accordance
with all laws and regulations to which the company must comply. The Committee is also of the opinion that all related
party transactions have been conducted within the guidelines established to avoid any conflict of interest, and that the
published code of good corporate governance has been applied.

The Audit Committee has proposed to the Board of Directors to consider the appointment of Mrs Suwannee
Bhuripanyo of PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Limited to be the company's statutory auditor for 2006. This nomination
will be proposed to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for confirmation.

p -~

Suchad Chiaranussati
Chairman of Audit Committee
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Management Discussion and Analysis of 2005 Operating ©

1 Weather

In 2005 southern Thailand experienced the most severe dry season since the El Nino drought of 1997-1998. The
dry weather extended from December 2004 to April 2005 and the company's estates suffered an average soil water
deficit of 328 mm.

This drought caused low oil extraction rates during the first half of the year and lower fruit production due to the
abortion of fruit bunches. Despite many new areas coming into production, Thailand's production of crude palm oil
(CPO) fell for the second successive year, from 863,835 tonnes in 2003, to 783,954 tonnes in 2005, a decline of -9.3%.

Increase (decrease)

2003 2004 2005 2003/2005
Thailand's planted area (rai) 2,040,187 2,391,209 2,743,131 +34.5%
Thailand's FFB Production (mt) 4,858,595 4,663,872 4,523,066 (-6.9%)
Thailand's crushing Capacity (mt/hr) 1,569 1,779 2,019 +28.7%

As aresult of the drought, an increased number of crushing mills were competing for a lower volume of fruit. This
overcapacity brought intense competition to the palm oil crushing industry and significantly reduced crushing margins.

2 Company Production

Despite the 2005 drought, the production of FFB from our own plantations was 3.4% higher than the previous
year due to good production from our new generation of hybrid palms in replanted estates. However, the volume of FFB
purchased from outside growers was lower by -9.5% and the total volume of palm oil produced by Univanich factories
reduced by -6.2% to 100,925 tonnes.

§ Sales

The average CPO selling price was 16.6% lower than in 2004 due to good overseas harvests and a recovery in
world stocks of vegetable oils. This lower price had a significant effect on the company's profit. The average Palm Kernel
Oil (PKO) price was also 5.1% lower than in 2004.

Palm Kernel Oil (PKO) sales volume of 15,335 tonnes was 24.3% lower than in 2004 since the amount of PKO
purchased from other crushing mills for export reduced by 43.2%. Most of the company's PKO sales were exports to
Malaysia where there was strong demand from oleochemical manufacturers.

The company's Seeds and Seedlings sales volume increased from 3.2 million in 2004 to 4.2 million seeds and
seedlings in 2005. New markets for Univanich hybrid oil palm seeds were developed in South America, India and
Philippines. There was strong demand for high quality seeds from the domestic oil palm industry which is expanding at a
rapid rate.

Overall, the company's net sales proceeds of Baht 2.112 billion was 17.1% lower than the previous year, mostly
due to lower palm oil prices and less PKO purchases for export.

UNIVANICH
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4 Cost of Sales

Cost of sales of Baht 1,754.7 million was 12.5% lower than in the previous year due to the lower volume of fruit
purchases, lower FFB prices and the lower volume of PKO purchases. Depreciation charges have increased by Baht 22.8
million in 2005 due to the company's investment in new capacity and technologies.

5 Trading Result
The after-tax profit of Baht 200.1 million was 48.1% lower than the previous year.

The drought reduced Thailand's FFB production and resulted in intense competition in the crushing industry. The
fall in the average CPO selling price also resulted in lower margins from our own estates. These negative seasonal factors
were partly compensated by good growth in sales of Univanich seed and seedlings.

6 Cash Flow and Capital Structure

Cash and cash equivalent at 31 December 2005 was Baht 129.0 million compared to Baht 224.4 million at end of
2004.

@ Net cash inflow from operating activities of Baht 366.63 million resulted from net profit of Baht 200.08 million,
depreciation and amortization and other non cash charges of Baht 106.54 million and a decrease in working
capital of Baht 30.01 million.

@ Net cash payments for capital expenditure of Baht 150.00 million was mainly investment on the new PKO
crushing plant, the ongoing oil palm replanting programme, and acquisition of 408 rai of plantation land.

e Net cash outflow from financing activities of Baht 282.00 million resulted from dividend payments of Baht
282.00 million, being Baht 3.0 per share.

The company's capital structure at 31 December 2005 was strong. The company had no long term debt and the
debt to equity ratio was only 0.11 times.
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Univanich receives Best Performance Award
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John Clendon, managing director of Univanich Palm Oil Plc, accepts the Best Performance Award for Agro-
Industry and Food sector from Finance Minister Somkid Jatusripitak at the 2005 Thailand Business Leader Awards.
Mr Clendon was also a nominee for the Best CEO of the year award

The annual event held in the Queen Sirikit National Convention Centre is organised by the Stock Exchange of
Thailand and CNBC Television. In the first phase of judging a team from the University of Chicago Graduate School
of Business (Chicago GSB) shortlisted companies based on four performance measures : Sales Growth, Operating
Margin, Earnings before Interest and taxes (EBIT) Per Employee and Return on Capital Employed (ROCE)

The second phase of the judging involved face-to-face interviews with a team from Development Dimensions
International (DDI), a global consulting company specialising in leadership development, DDI worked closely with
Chicago GSB to evaluate the performance of all semi-finalists based on a set of key parameters.
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Univanich invests in oil palm tissue culture
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In 2005, the Company embarked on a programme of research into oil palm tissue culture. The aim of this
long-term research project is to produce high yielding clonal palms in support of the Company's oil palm breeding
programme.

The new Tissue Culture Laboratory pictured above has received promotion from Thailand's Board of Invest-
ment (BOI) as a project to increase the production of high quality oil palm planting material. It is the first laboratory
in Thailand designed specifically to produce oil palm clones and overseas specialists have been engaged to advise on

its operation.
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Expanding Seed Exports
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There has been increasing interest in Univanich oil palm seeds from many countries, especially from areas where
there is a significant dry season. Univanich planting material has been selected in such an environment to be more tolerant
of drought stress.

Pictured above, Indian customers inspect a nursery of Univanich seedlings in the Indian state of Andhra Pradesh.
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New Kernel Crushing Plant at Lamthap Factory
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In 2005, Univanich constructed its second palm kernel oil (PKO) plant. Investment in the total project and
infrastructure was approximately Baht 50.0 million. In its first phase the new plant will increase the Company's PK
crushing capacity by 70%. The construction was completed on time in September 2005.
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Nursery Expansion at Lamthap
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More land has been cleared around the company's factory at Lamthap to create an oil palm nursery measuring
approximately 44 rai (7 hectares). A unique feature of this development is the construction of water reservoirs and ponds
to use waste water from the factory to irrigate the young seedlings.
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Purchase of Land
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In 2005, Univanich acquired an additional 408 rai

(65.3 hectares) of plantation land close to the company's
Siam Palm Estate. The land is planted in oil palms aged 10
to 16 years, with a small area of rubber trees. This purchase

was completed in December and the area has been
amalgamated in to Siam Palm Estate.
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Replanting: Progeny Trials
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In 2005, Univanich replanted 192 Hectares (1,202 rai) in its annual replanting programme. In the area pictured
above the young palms have been planted in trial plots to record the performance of individual hybrid crosses from the
breeding programme. The uncovered soil in the foreground marks the line of recently installed irrigation pipes since this
trial will also record the performance of different progenies with and without irrigation.
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Expansion of Seed Production
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In 2005, Univanich constructed new facilities for the future expansion of oil palm seed production.

Each year the company's breeding programme has been planting approximately 200 rai (32 hectares) of selected
oil palm progeny trials. This research is to identify the best hybrid crosses for future generations of high yielding seeds.
When these crosses are approved for commercial production the new facilities pictured above will enable Univanich to
produce up to 10 million germinated seeds each year.
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Univanich Staff Celebrations
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Staff gathered with Chairman Mr Apirag Vanich at the Univanich Clubhouse on 28th July to celebrate The
Company's success at the 2005 Business Leaders Awards. Khun Apirag congratulated the management and staff on
receiving this public acknowledgement of their work for the company. He also congratulated Mr John Clendon on his
nomination as finalist for CEO of the Year Award.
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RISK FACTORS

Climate

Weather patterns, such as occur during a severe drought, can affect average oil palm yields by as much as 20%.
This impact of climatic events will be experienced in the year of the drought and up to two years after the stress when the
palms produce fewer fruit bunches.

Over the past seven years 1999 - 2005, the average Univanich yield of palm fruit, including from young replanting
areas, has been 20.1 tonnes FFB per hectare (3.2 tonnes per rai) within the range of 17.3 tonnes to 24.0 tonnes average
yield per hectare, depending on the season.

Production of crude palm oil in Thailand actually fell from 863,835 tonnes in 2003 to 783,957 tonnes in 2005, due
to seasonal climatic factors (Source : Department of Internal Trade), but there is a strong underlying growth trend and
annual Thai CPO production is expected to reach 1.0 million tonnes in 2006 or 2007.

AFTA

Under the Asean Free Trade Agreement (AFTA) it was proposed to remove non-tariff barriers to vegetable oil
trade within Asean, with any Tariffs to be reduced to maximum 5% by 2003. This measure has not yet been fully
implemented and palm oil imports into Thailand are still restricted by non-tariff barriers.

In 2005 Univanich exported 16% by value of palm oil sales. In developing these export markets Univanich
successfully competed with the major Asean producers in Malaysia and Indonesia.

Competition from Soya Qil, Rape Seed Oil and Sunflower Oil

The main competitor for palm oil in world markets and in Thailand's domestic market is soya oil. Competition
from soya oil may increase as a result of increased plantings in South America, encouraged by growing demand for soya
meal as an animal feed and by the higher yields from genetically modified soya crops (GMOs)

However, at the present time palm oil is the most price competitive of the eight main oils competing for a share of
the world market. World production of palm oil has grown from 27.88 million tonnes in 2003 to 29.99 million tonnes in
2004 (Source : Oil World March 2005) Source : Oil World

wuasNunNgLazluiuusTaaludssinalng
Thailand’s main sources of QOils & Fats

Others (9.0%)
Palm Oil (56.0%)

Sunflower Oil{4.0%)
Coconut Oil{4.0%]
Rice Bran Oil

Soya Bean Ol (18.0%)

Palm Kernel Oil (5.0%)
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World Demand Growth

World demand growth for oils and fats will depend on world economic growth, world population growth and
price trends for oils and fats which will fluctuate according to supply and demand.

Currently there is very strong demand growth. The world's annual consumption of 17 edible oils and fats has
grown from 65.7 million tonnes in 1984/85 to 143.8 million tonnes in 2005. (Source : Oil World, March 2006)

One factor driving this demand is the strong economic growth rates in India and China. If the economies of India
and China experience slower growth this may also reduce the rate of growth in the world's demand for vegetable oils.

Biodiesel Demand Growth

Vegetable oils are increasingly consumed as biofuels for electricity generation and for the manufacture of biodiesel.
In the EU, biodiesel capacity has surged from 1.9 million tonnes in 2002, to 4.5 million tonnes in 2006. World capacity,
including new biodiesel plants now under construction, is expected to reach 13.5 million tonnes by 2007.

With the price of crude petroleum oil above US$ 40.0 per barrel, the demand for biodiesel manufactured from
vegetable oils is likely to increase. Some European Union forecasts are for 13.5 million tonnes of biodiesel capacity by
2010, in the EU alone. There are similarly impressive projections for biodiesel demand in USA, Brazil and several Asian
countries, including Thailand. If the price of crude petroleum oil should fall significantly below US$ 40.0 per barrel, this
rate of new demand growth for biodiesel may reduce.

Exchange rates

International trade in palm oil is conducted in US dollars. Exporters from Thailand can therefore be affected by
the value of the Thai Baht relative to the US dollar. In the short term Univanich hedges any currency risk on individual
sales contracts.

Competition from new crushing mills

In Thailand there is strong competition for purchased fruit amongst at least 35 major crushing mills. Univanich has
about 11% share of this market. New crushing mills and expanded existing mills can affect the level of competition for
purchased fruit.

However, in spite of new crushing capacity entering the industry every year, Univanich has achieved a good long
term growth rate. This has been made possible by the continuing expansion Thailand's oil palm production area which has
increased from 2.0 million rai in 2003 to 2.7 million rai in 2005, an increase of 34.5% (source: Department of Agriculture
statistics). At this rate of growth, Thailand will require a similar rate of expansion of crushing capacity, with some new
crushing mills required every year.
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SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE AND MANAGEMENT
Board of Directors and Management
Y . No of Shares No of Shares
The Company's Board of Directors 31 December 2004 31 December 2005 Change
1. Mr. Apirag Vanich 17,591,042 17,591,042 0
2. Mrs. Phortchana Manoch 1,475,214 1,475,214 0
3. Mr. Vichai Dhepchalerm 355,436 355,436 0
4. Mrs. Kanchana Chitrudi-amphai 1,954,748 0 -1,954,748
5. Ms. Aungkhana Vanich 1,475,214 1,475,214 0
6. Dr. Prote Sosothikul 200,000 200,000 0
7. Mr. John Clendon 800,000 800,000 0
8. Mr. Suchad Chiaranussati 0 0 0
9. Mr. Tanate Phutrakul 0 0 0
10. Ms. Supapang Chanlongbutra 0 0 0
. No of Shares No of Shares
Senior Management 31 December 2004 31 December 2005 Change
1. Mr. John Clendon 800,000 800,000 0
2. Dr. Palat Tittinutchanon 9,500 9,500 0
3. Mr. Suchart Terdkiatkhachorn 105,500 105,500 0
4. Mr. Narong Suvannarerg 5,500 5,500 0
5. Mr. Anucha Supakorn 4,500 4,500 0
6. Mr. Nattapong Dachanabhirom 3,000 3,000 0
7. Mr. Sompon Tantitham 45,500 45,500 0
8. Ms. Khanang Buranavisetkul 3,500 3,500 0
Shareholding Structure The first 10 major shareholders as at 31 Dec 2005
Shareholders Number Of Shares Percent
1. Mr. Apirag Vanich 17,591,042 18.71
2. Thailand Securities Depository Co.,Ltd. for Depositors (Foreign) 17,098,400 18.19
3. Thailand Securities Depository Co.,Ltd. for Depositors (Local) 16,008,309 17.03
4. Mrs. Chantip Vanich 9,024,430 9.60
5. Chean Vanich Co., Ltd. 5,596,662 5.95
6. Mrs. Boonrod Vanich 4,171,706 4.44
7. Duke Technology Limited 1,830,000 1.95
8. Ms. Rojana Vanich 1,569,198 1.67
9. Mrs. Anchalee Tepabutra 1,515,214 1.61
10. Mr. Kobchai Sosothikul 1,479,678 1.57
Dividend Policy

The Company has a policy to pay cash dividend of not less than 50% of its net profit after taxation. However,
whether the Company will pay a dividend and the amount thereof will depend, amongst other things, on the Company's
financial conditions and future plans. e
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Mr. Apirag Vanich

Chairman
Age4l

Education : Master's degree in Business Administration
from Indiana University and a degree in Agricultural
Economics from Purdue University in the United States

Experience : Director of the Vanich group of companies
in 1990 and Executive Chairman of the group since 1992.
The Vanich group of companies is concentrated mainly in
Thailand and in addition to the Univanich palm oil business
the group has interests in mining, transport, property
development and hospital services. Mr Vanich is also a
director of Siam Paetra Co., Ltd., a business involved in
international shipping and container services.

I\_/Irs. Phortchana Manoch

Director
AgeS1

Education : Master's degree in Hospital Administration
from the University of Wisconsin, Green Bay, in the United
States

Experience : Currently Chief Executive of Aikchol
Hospital Public Co., Ltd., a modern private hospital in
Chonburi Province. Mrs Manoch has been a director of
the Univanich business for more than fifteen years and is
also a director of other companies in Vanich group.

Mr. Vichai Dhepchalerm

Director
Age78

Education : Mining Engineer Certificate

Experience : Mr Vichai Dhepchalerm has been an engineer
in the mining industry. He has also been associated with
the oil palm business in Thailand for more than 30 years
and was appointed as a non-executive director in 1983. Mr
Dhepchalerm is also a director of Thaicoon Andaman Co.,
Ltd and Phangnga Timber Co., Ltd. and is a director of
other companies in the Vanich group.
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Mrs. Kanchana Chitrudi-amphai

Director
Age 48

Education : A degree in finance from the University of
Wisconsin in the United States

Experience : Mrs Kanchana Chitrudi-amphai has been a
non-executive Director in the Univanich Palm Oil business
since 1983 and is also a director of other companies in the
Vanich group, including Aikchol Hospital Public Company
Limited.

Ms. Aungkhana Vanich

Director
Age 45

Education : Master's degree in Business Administration
from University of New Haven in Connecticut, U.S.A.

Experience : Ms Aungkhana Vanich was non-executive
Director in the Univanich business from 1989 to 1995
before re-joining the company in 2000. She is currently
also Executive Director of property developer Vanich
Lineal Co., Ltd. and a non-executive Director of Chean
Vanich Co., Ltd., Chean Vanich Transport Co., Ltd., and
Phuket Rubber Co., Ltd.

Dr. Prote Sosothikul

Director
Age 38

Education : Doctorate in Business Administration from
the American University of Hawaii and Master of Science
degree from Boston University, USA.

Experience : Currently Vice President of Business
Development for Seacon Development PLC, the developer
and operator of the largest retail shopping complex in
Thailand. Dr Prote Sosothikul was appointed as a non-

executive director on the Univanich Board in 2000.
—
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Mr. John Clendon

Managing Director
AgeS7

Education : Diplomas in Agriculture and in Valuation
and Farm Management, from Lincoln University in New
Zealand.

Experience : Previously with the Unilever Plantations and
Plant Science Group of the UK from 1980 to 1998, holding
various positions in the Asia-Pacific region, including that
of'the Managing Director of the Univanich joint venture in
Thailand from 1991 to 1996. Prior to re-joining Univanich
in October 1998, Mr Clendon was the Director of Unilever's
oil palm operations in East Asia, Chairman and Managing
Director of Unipamol Malaysia Sdn Bhd. and director of
Unifield PLC in the UK.

Mr. Suchad Chiaranussati

Chairman of the Audit Committee/
Independent Director
Age 42

Education : Master's degree in Management Science from
Imperial College, University of London and an honours
degree in economics and political science from the London
School of Economics.

Experience : Between 1991 and 1998, Mr Chiaranussati
was a vice-president of Investment Banking at JP Morgan's
Proprietary Investment and Investment Banking Unit. In
late 1998 he was appointed as an advisor to the Bank of
Thailand on matters relating to corporate sector debt
restructuring, and the Financial Institutions Development
Fund. Mr Chiaranussati was the Managing Principal of
Westbrook Partners till early 2005. Today, Mr
Chiaranussati is the Managing Principal of RECAP Partners
and is responsible for RECAP Partners' real estate
investment operations for Asia. Mr Chiaranussati was
appointed to the Univanich Board as an Independent
Director on 12 February, 2000.
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Mr. Tanate Phutrakul

Audit Committee/Independent Director
Age4l

Education : Master's degree in Engineering from Imperial
College, University of London and a Master of Business
Administration from Harvard University.

Experience : Currently chief financial officer of TMB
Bank PCL, Mr Phutrakul is responsible for Finance, Risk
Management and Investment banking group. For seven
years prior to 2003, Mr Phutrakul was the Country
Manager for ING Bank's activities in Thailand including
investment banking, corporate lending and equity research.
He was also on the Board of ING Aetna Osothspa Life
insurance and ING Securities (Thailand) Limited. In 2003
he joined DBS Thai Danu Bank as Managing Director of
the Bank's Commercial banking operations in Thailand. In
September 2004, with the merger of DBS Thai Danu Bank
and the TMB Bank, Mr Phutrakul was appointed to his
current position with TMB Bank. Mr Phutrakul was
appointed to the Univanich Board as an Independent
Director on 27 July 2003.

Ms. Supapang Chanlongbutra

Audit Committee/Independent Director
Age49

Education : Master's degree in Public Administration
from the National Institute of Development Administration
and a degree in Accounting from Thammasart University

Experience : Ms Chanlongbutra joined Univanich as a
Management Trainee in 1985 and was the Company's
Financial Controller from 1994 to 1997 before being
promoted to the position of Commercial Manager in charge
of the Company's financial and accounting activities.
During her 15 years with the Company she participated in
Unilever's commercial and management training activities
in several countries, and in 1990 was seconded as an
overseas auditor in Unilever's Internal Audit Department.
In 2000 Ms Chanlongbutra resigned her management
position with Univanich to take up management
responsibility for her family's business interests in
plantations, rubber manufacturing and exporting.

Ms Chanlongbutra was appointed to the Univanich Board
as an Independent Director on 27 July 2003.
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Senior Management Committee (left to right): Narong Suvannarerg (Purchased Fruit Controller),
Nattapong Dachanabhirom (Accounting manager), Khanang Buranavisetkul (Management
Accountant), John Clendon (Managing Director), Palat Tittinutchanon (Plantations manager), Sompon
Tantitham (Factories Manager), Suchart Terdkiatkhachorn (Group Engineer, Health, Safety and
Environment Co-ordinator), Anucha Supakorn (Commercial Manager)
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Dr. Palat Tittinutchanon

Plantations Manager
Age59

Education : Ph.D. (Soil and Plant Science) University of
Florida, U.S.A., a Master's degree from North Carolina
State University and a Bachelor degree from Kasetsart
University in Thailand

Experience : Before joining Univanich in 1988, Palat
Tittinutchanon was senior Oil Palm Agronomist in
Thailand's Department of Agriculture. In 1988 he was ap-
pointed Research Officer responsible for the Univanich
R&D programme. From 1994 he was seconded overseas
by Unilever for two years as Estate Manager in Pamol Plan-
tations Sdn Bhd in Malaysia. Upon his return to Thailand in
1996, he took up his present position as Plantations Man-
ager, responsible for all operations in Univanich oil palm
estates and in our R&D Department.

Mr. Suchart Terdkiatkhachorn

Group Engineer, Health, Safety and Environment
Co-ordinator
Age 58

Education : Associateship in Mining Engineering from
the Western Australian Institute of Technology

Experience : Prior to joining Univanich in 1983 Suchart
Terdkiatkhachorn was an engineer in the Gypsum Mining
industry. As Group Engineer he is currently responsible
for Univanich's Technical Investment Projects, Personnel
administration and Quality Controls. In 1996 he was trained
in U.K. before also taking responsibility as the Co-ordinator
of Univanich's Health, Safety and Environment
Programme.
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Mr. Narong Suvannarerg

Purchased Fruit Controller
Age 61

Education : MS (Soil Science) University of the
Philippines and a Bachelor degree in Science from Kasetsart
University

Experience : Narong Suvannarerg worked as an Assistant
Researcher in the Department of Agriculture in 1968 and
as Technical Officer in Rubber Replanting Aid Fund in
1969. He joined Univanich Group in 1981 as an Estate
Manager and was promoted to a Personnel & Public
Relations Manager in 1990. In 1993 he was appointed to
be manager responsible for the Company's Purchased Fruit
Operations.

Mr. Anucha Supakorn

Commercial Manager
Age 44

Education : B.A. (Accounting) Chulalongkorn University

Experience : For 16 years prior to joining Univanich,
Anucha Supakorn worked in the Finance and Accounting
Department of various companies of the Shell Companies
in Thailand including upstream oil, tin smelting and petro-
leum refining. He joined Univanich in November 2000 as
Commercial Manager and is currently responsible for the
company's domestic and export marketing operations.

Mr. Nattapong Dachanabhirom

Accounting Manager
Age 36

Education : BA (Accounting) The University of the Thai
Chamber of Commerce, Certified Public Accountant
(Thailand)

Experience : Nattapong Dachanabhirom worked as an
Audit Supervisor with Coopers & Lybrand (TH) Company
Limited for 5 years from 1992. In 1997 he joined Univanich
as Financial Controller and was promoted to Accounting
Manager in 2000, responsible for the company's accounting
and finance operations.
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Mr. Sompon Tantitham

Factories Manager
Age 54

Education : BS in Mechanical Engineering, King
Mongkut's Institute of Technology North Bangkok
Campus, Bangkok

Experience : Before joining Univanich, Sompon
Tantitham worked as an Engineer at Saha-Union Corp.,Ltd.
He joined Univanich in 1982 as a factory engineer and was
promoted to Factory Manager in 1997. In 2003 he was
appointed Project Manager to oversee the construction of
the new crushing mill at Lamthap. Upon successful
completion of that project he was appointed Factories
manager, responsible for the operations of the company's
three palm oil crushing mills.

Ms. Khanang Buranavisetkul

Management Accountant/Internal Audit
Age4l

Education : BA (Accounting) The University of the Thai
Chamber of Commerce, Master of Science in Information
Technology, in Business Accounting Information Systems,
Chulalongkorn University

Experience : Before joining Univanich, Khanang
Buranavisetkul worked as the Accounting Manager at
Neocosmed Co.,Ltd a consumer goods manufacturer. She
joined Univanich as a Management Accountant in 2003
and is currently responsible for the company's Internal
Audit operations and IT systems.
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Management Structure

Board of Directors

As at 31 December 2005, the Company has ten Directors, including an Audit Committee which comprises three
independent directors.

The Company's Board of Directors

Name Position

1. Mr. Apirag Vanich Chairman

2. Mrs. Phortchana Manoch Director

3. Mr. Vichai Dhepchalerm Director

4. Mrs. Kanchana Chitrudi-amphai Director

5. Ms. Aungkhana Vanich Director

6. Dr. Prote Sosothikul Director

7. Mr. John Clendon Managing Director

8. Mr. Suchad Chiaranussati Independent Director

9. Mr. Tanate Phutrakul Independent Director
10. Ms. Supapang Chanlongbutra Independent Director

In addition, Mr. Osoth Kosin serves the Company as an Honorary Adviser while Mr. Anucha Supakorn and Ms.
Khanang Buranavisetkul are responsible for investor relation activities.

Scope of duties and responsibilities of the Board of Directors

1. The Board of Directors is responsible for managing the public company to be in compliance with the Public
Companies Act and in accordance with the Company's Memorandum and Articles of Association.

2. The Board of Directors is responsible for managing the Company to be in line with the objectives and resolutions
of the shareholders' meetings.

3. In a transaction in which a director has a personal interest or may have some other conflict of interest with the
Company, that director will not have the right to vote on the matter.

4. Authorized directors must comprise two directors co-signing together with the Company's seal in order to bind
the Company to its obligations.

5. The Board of directors can assign power of attorney to any one or more persons or juristic persons to act jointly
or severally on behalf of the Company according to the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company, including appointment or removal of Company employees. The Board of Directors has the right to
change or withdraw such power of attorney already assigned to such persons. The assignment of the power of
attorney must not be in such a way that it will cause the Managing Director or management, or potentially
conflicting persons, to have a conflict of interest with the Company. Such approval is granted in a case of
normal business and when the Board of Directors has already defined the scope of approval clearly.
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6. The following activities can be done with the majority approval from the Board of Directors in which one
director possesses one vote:
6.1 Budget approval and the annual business plan
6.2 Borrowing or lending the amount of more than Baht 70 million including borrowing at one time or several
times from the same lender
6.3 Provision of guarantee of an amount over Baht 70 million, whether at one time or several times for the
same borrower
7. The director must inform the Company immediately if:
7.1 He or she has an interest in a contract whether directly or indirectly involving the Company, or
7.2 He or she increases or decreases his/her holding in both shares or debentures of the Company or group
companies
8. The Board of Directors is responsible for monitoring the Company in compliance with the rules and regulations
of’both the SET and SEC regarding connected transactions as well as acquisition and disposal of assets of listed companies.

Independent Directors
As at 31 December 2005 the company has three Independent Directors whose personal profiles are included with
the Board of Directors in this Annual Report.

All three Independent Directors fulfill the following criteria ;

@ They are not shareholders of the company or of any related, affiliated or associated company, either directly or
indirectly.

e They are not involved in the management of the company or of any related, or associated company, and do not
receive a regular salary from any such company.

e They have no direct or indirect beneficial interest in the finance or management of the company or of any
related, or associated company.

@ They are not related in any way to a member of management or to the majority shareholders of the company or
of a related or associated company.

e They have not been appointed as a representative to safeguard interests of the company's directors, majority
shareholders or shareholders who are related to the company's majority shareholders.

@ They are skilled and highly capable of performing the duties of Independent Directors, including giving opinions
and reporting on the financial performance of the company, and to carry out other duties delegated to them by
the Board of Directors, free of the control of management, major shareholders or the close relatives of such
connected persons.

Audit Committee
As of 31 December 2005, the Company's Audit Committee comprises three Independent Directors, as follows:

Name Position
1. Mr. Suchad Chiaranussati Chairman of the Audit Committee
2. Mr. Tanate Phutrakul Audit Committee member
3. Ms. Supapang Chanlongbutra Audit Committee member
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Scope of Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee

L.
2.
3.

Review to ensure that the Company has a complete, correct and adequate financial statement.

Review to ensure that the Company has suitable and effective internal control and internal audit.

Review to ensure that the Company complies with the SEC Act, SET regulations and laws governing the
business of the Company.

. Consider selecting and nominating the Company's auditor, including recommendation of the auditor's

compensation.

. Consider the Company's disclosure on connected transactions or transactions that give rise to a conflict of

interest to ensure accuracy and completeness.

. Prepare a report on good corporate governance and publish it in the Company's annual report and to be signed

by the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

. Execute other responsibilities as assigned by the Board of Directors and agreed by the Audit Committee

Strategic Planning Subcommittee
The Strategic Planning Subcommittee was established by the Board in 2004 comprising seven Directors, as follows:

Name

. Mr. Apirag Vanich

. Mrs. Phortchana Manoch

. Dr. Prote Sosothikul

. Mr. John Clendon

. Mr. Suchad Chiaranussati

. Mr. Tanate Phutrakul

. Ms. Supapang Chanlongbutra

~N O L AW~

Position

Chairman

Director

Director

Managing Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director

The Strategic Planning Subcommittee meets as required, to review the Company strategy for long-term growth,
the Long Term Plan, and other long-term strategic issues including the appointment and succession of senior management.

Remuneration Subcommittee
The Remuneration Subcommittee, whose members comprise Non-Executive Directors was established by the
Board on 11 August 2005. The Subcommittee comprises four Directors, as follows:

Name

1. Mr. Apirag Vanich

2. Dr. Prote Sosothikul

3. Mr. Tanate Phutrakul

4. Ms. Supapang Chanlongbutra

Position

Chairman

Director

Independent Director
Independent Director

The Remuneration Subcommittee meets as required, to review and recommend to the Board the framework of
senior management remuneration. As the Executive Directors are not members of the Subcommittee, they do not play
any part in the decisions of their own remuneration.
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Management
As of 31 December 2005, the Company's Management Committee of senior managers comprises eight members
as follows:
Name Position
1. Mr. John Clendon Managing Director
2. Dr. Palat Tittinutchanon Plantations Manager
3. Mr. Suchart Terdkiatkhachorn Group Engineer, Health, Safety
and Environment Co-ordinator
4. Mr. Narong Suvannarerg Purchased Fruit Controller
5. Mr. Anucha Supakorn Commercial Manager
6. Mr. Nattapong Dachanabhirom Accounting Manager
7. Mr. Sompon Tantitham Factories Manager
8. Ms. Khanang Buranavisetkul Management Accountant

Scope of Duties and Responsibilities of the Managing Director

The Managing Director has the authority to manage and monitor the Company's normal business and approve the
Company's regular transactions including procurement of raw materials, equipment and appliances as well as general
expenses under the scope and responsibility given by the Board of Directors.

The Managing Director's approval authority does not include any transaction that may involve both the Managing
Director as well as other persons which may cause any conflict of interest with the Company. In compliance with SET
regulations, such transactions include connected transactions or acquisition or disposal of the Company's assets which
require shareholders' approval, unless such transaction are in the normal course of business and the Board of Directors
has already defined the scope of approval clearly.

Scope of Duties and Responsibilities of the Management

1. Collectively decide on the Company's critical issues including establishing duties, objectives, guidelines, the
Company's policies, corporate governance, production, customer relations as well as being responsible to the
Board of Directors.

2. Authority to approve general expenses, project expenses or investments according to the scope of duties and
responsibilities assigned by the Board of Directors.

3. Authorities to hire, appoint, dismiss, define the salary, offer reward, raise the salary and compensate bonus for
employees in the various departments of the company.

4. Authority to act for and on behalf of the Company in any business that is relevant and beneficial to the
Company.

5. Act on the Company's general management affairs.

The Management's approval authority does not include any transactions that may involve Management interest
that may cause any conflict of interest with the Company, including connected transactions or acquisition or disposal of
the Company's assets according to SET regulations, unless such transactions are in the normal course of business and the
Board of Directors has already defined the scope of approval clearly.
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Appointment of Directors and Management

Appointment of Directors

® The Board of Directors comprises at least five directors appointed by the shareholders.

@ The Board of Directors shall elect the directors to be Chairman, Vice-Chairman, Managing Director and any
other positions as deem appropriate.

® Ateach annual general meeting, at least one-third of the total number of directors must resign. If the number of
directors cannot be divided evenly into threes, the number of directors to resign must be close to one-third.

e Since the Company's Articles of Association do not specify the method for electing the Board of Directors,
therefore, the election of the Board of Director will be done according to the Public Companies Act which sets
out an election method known as a "cumulative voting" that has the following principles:

1. One shareholder has a total number of votes equal to the number of shares held multiplied by the number of
directors to be elected.

2. Each shareholder can cast the total number of votes according to clause (1) above to elect one or more candidate
to become directors. In case of voting for many candidates, the shareholder can divide votes in proportion
among the candidates.

3. Candidates will be ranked in descending number of votes, and those with highest number of votes will be elected
to become directors according to the number of vacant positions. Inthe event of a tie, the decision will be made
by drawing lots.

Appointment of the Managing Director and Management
The Board's Strategic Planning Subcommittee has responsibility to review and recommend senior management
appointment and succession planning.
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Remuneration

Remuneration for ten directors

Remuneration Type 2005 (Baht million)

Fees and compensation 5.36

At the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No 36 on 28th April 2005, shareholders voted to maintain
Director's remuneration without change. The current fee for individual directors is Baht 270,564.80 per annum, with the
Chairman's fee set at Baht 405,847.20 per annum. In addition the Chairman receives expenses totaling Baht 2,196,150
per annum.

Only the Audit Committee receives meeting expenses amounting to Baht 20,000 per meeting in the case of Audit
Committee members, and Baht 25,000 per meeting in the case of Audit Committee Chairman.

Remuneration for Auditors

Remuneration Type 2005 (Baht)

Audit Fees 952,000

Remuneration for eight senior managers

Remuneration Type 2005 (Baht million)

Salary, awards and compensation 29.62

Other compensation

The Company has established a retirement fund for its employees. Retiring employees will receive the retirement
compensation according to the labour law and other benefits upon retirement according to the Company's retirement
regulations.

Corporate Governance

In the past, the Company was not a listed company and followed the Unilever code of good corporate governance.
The Company has recognised the importance of the good corporate governance guidelines according to the SET and
therefore on 6 August 2003, the Board of Directors agreed to implement the 15 principles of good corporate governance
and to disclose the Company's code of good corporate governance in the annual filing (Form 56-1) and annual report
(Form 56-2) as well as in the Form 69-1, according to the following principles:
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1. Policy on corporate governance

@ Treat all shareholders and other stakeholders equally.

@ The Board of Directors must manage the Company with diligence and care and be fully responsible for their
duties.

@ Support the management and employees to work with ethical conduct.

@ Set up an efficient organization structure with the delegation of decision-making authority to different levels to
allow the correct planning, quick delegation and efficient supervision of the work.

@ Arrange for risk assessment from both internal and external sources through regular meetings between
management and internal auditors to consider various risk factors that could affect the Company's operation
and projections.

2. Right and equality of shareholders

In 2005, the Company organized an Annual General Meeting of shareholders at a venue in central Bangkok for
shareholders convenience. The Company sent out the invitation letters to the shareholders at least seven days prior to the
meeting date in accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, and also prepared the minutes of the meeting
within 14 days after the meeting date. The minutes are filed and can be reviewed by shareholders upon demand.

3. Right of other stakeholders

The Company places great importance on the rights of various groups of stakeholders as follows:

@ Employees: The Company treats all its employees equally.

e Trading partners: The Company establishes fair policy and operational procedures with its trading partners.
@ Creditors: The Company conforms with the terms and conditions of any loan.

@ Clients: The Company sells quality products to its clients at fair prices.

@ Competitors: The Company does not conduct business in a way that damages its competitors.

@ Society: The Company conducts business that does not negatively affect society and environment.

4. Shareholders' Meeting

The Company emphasises the importance of selecting a convenient central location for shareholders' meetings
and circulating the notice and agenda to all shareholders not less than seven days before the meeting. Every director and
Independent Director will normally attend such meetings and the Chairman will allocate appropriate time and opportunity
for shareholders to ask questions and express their view.

5. Leadership and Vision

The Board of Directors participates in establishing and approving the Company's policies including the business
plan, and budgets. The Board constantly monitors the Company's progress according such business plan and budgets.
This also involves assigning responsibility to Management to implement such policies efficiently in order to increase the
enterprise's value and to generate expected returns to the shareholders, as well as to disclose accurate information to
shareholders in a transparent and timely manner.

Although the Board of Directors has delegated management authority to the Managing Director, the Board of
Directors still retains the highest approval authority according to the Company's Articles of Association.
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6. Conflicts of Interest

The Company has implemented measures to prevent potential conflicts of interest. The Company will strictly
comply with the SEC Actand SET rules and regulations. In any transactions in which directors, management or shareholders
are persons whose personal interest may conflict with the Company's interest, such persons will not be eligible to vote
approval of such transactions. Any such transactions will be conducted according to the Company's normal practice
under which the market price will be regarded as a key benchmark and to be comparable to prices in transactions
conducted with unrelated third parties.

The Company publicly discloses its connected party transactions in order to safeguard investors' interests. Details
can be found in the notes to the audited financial statements. These connected transactions also have to have Audit
Committee approval regarding the necessity and reasonableness of the transactions.

In order to prevent exploitation of inside information, the Company strictly prohibits its directors, management
and employees from using any undisclosed inside information that can affect the share price. The Company shall seek
litigation against any person who is found to use such inside information for personal benefit.

7. Code of Best Practice
The Company's directors comply with the code of best practice as set out by SET guidelines.

8. Directors' Roles
Currently, nine directors of the Company are not members of the management team. Three of these nine directors
are Independent Directors who make up the Audit Committee.

9. Separation of Responsibilities

Currently, the Chairman of the Board of Directors, Mr. Apirag Vanich, does not hold a management position in
the Company. Although Mr. Apirag Vanich is a representative of the Vanich Group, the major shareholder, he is not the
Managing Director. Therefore, there is added assurance that management along with its policies are independent.

10. Director and Management Remuneration
Compensations and incentives provided to directors and management are comparable to other companies in the
same industry and therefore, are justifiable.

The Company agrees to disclose information concerning director and management remuneration according to
the requirement from the SEC.
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11. The Board of Directors' Meeting

The Company organises Board of Directors' meeting at least once every three months. Invitations are sent out to
all directors not less than seven days prior to the meeting, according to the Company's Articles of Association. During
2005, the Company organized four Board of Directors' meetings with directors' participation as follows:

Name Position 2005 Meeting Attended
1. Mr. Apirag Vanich Chairman 4
2. Mrs. Phortchana Manoch Director 3
3. Mr. Vichai Dhepchalerm Director 4
4. Mrs. Kanchana Chitrudi-amphai Director 4
5. Ms. Aungkhana Vanich Director 2
6. Dr. Prote Sosothikul Director 4
7. Mr. John Clendon Director 4
8. Mr. Suchad Chiaranussati Chairman of Audit Committee 4
9. Mr. Tanate Phutrakul Audit Committee 4
10. Ms. Supapang Chanlongbutra Audit Committee 4

12. Subcommittees of the Board
In 2005 there were three Board Subcommittees

Audit Committee:

The Company appointed the Audit Committee on 29 July 2003. Members of the Audit Committee have tenure of
three years. During 2005, the Audit Committee has conducted four meetings to consider the implementation of the
Company's Internal Audit system.

Strategic Planning Subcommittee:

On 13 November 2004 the Company appointed the Strategic Planning Subcommittee to consider the Companys'
long-term growth options, and other long-term strategic issues, including the appointment and succession of senior
management.

Remuneration Subcommittee:
On 11 August 2005 the Company appointed the Remuneration Subcommittee to review and advise on the
remuneration structure of senior management.

13. Internal Control System and Internal Audit
The Company set up an internal audit system on 29 July 2003 to be supervised by the Audit Committee. This
committee has engaged an outside audit firm to help set up and monitor the internal control system.

14. Report of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors appointed the Audit Committee for the purpose of seeking opinions regarding the necessity
and reasonableness of connected transactions, which were certified and documented in the notes of the financial statement.
In the case where the Audit Committee cannot or does not have the capability to assess transactions in a reasonable
manner, the Company will be responsible for finding an independent specialist to provide opinions on the transaction on
the Audit Committee's behalf in order to provide the Board of Directors and shareholders with the best information for
their consideration.
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15. Investor Relations

In compliance with SEC requirements, the Company has provided sufficient information in the filing report and
prospectus. The Company will continue to disclose relevant information to the public in a timely and correct manner with
respect to the SEC and SET regulations. The Company has appointed the Managing Director, the Commercial Manager
and the Management Accountant as the persons responsible for investor relations affairs.

Internal Controls

Under the management of Unilever PLC, during the years 1983 - 1998, the company established systems of
internal controls which were periodically reviewed by Unilever's Internal Audit Department. In 2003 the company
established its own Internal Audit function, reporting to the Audit Committee which comprises three Independent
Directors. In order to further develop the Company's internal audit skills the Audit Committee has appointed BDO
Richfield Ltd, of Bangkok, to carry out risk assessments and audits of key business activities. Details of these internal audit
activities are recorded in the Report of the Audit Committee Chairman.
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RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Name Relationship Transaction Pric.ing Amount
Description Policy (Baht million)

Aik Rock Industry ~ Related to Mr. Apirag Vanich ~ ® Purchase palm fruit =~ Market price 0.52
Co., Ltd. (under Section 258) who is

Univanich's major shareholder

and Aik Rock's major share-

holder and authorized director.
Phuket Rubber Related to Mr. Apirag Vanich e pyrchase palm fruit ~ Market price 4.05
Co., Ltd. (under Section 258) who is

Univanich's major shareholder

and Phuket Rubber's major

shareholder and authorized di-

rector.
Chean Vanich Related to Mr. Apirag Vanich ~ ® Port charge for Market price 0.63

Transport Co., Ltd.  (under Section 258) who is export shipping
Univanich's major shareholders
and Chean Vanich Transport's
major shareholder and autho-
rized director.

The Necessity and appropriateness of related transactions

The Company has carefully considered the necessity and the appropriateness in order to obtain highest benefit for
the Company and its shareholders. The Company has received and paid for the compensation at a fair market price as
shown in the above table.

Measures or procedures to approve related transactions

1. Connected persons were excluded from the approval process whenever the Company entered into connected
transactions. Former connected transactions were proven to be normal business of the Company and the
pricing policy of those transactions were based on prices comparable to other transactions conducted with
other unrelated parties as described by the Company's Auditor in the notes to financial statements as well as in
the opinion of the Company's Audit Committee.

2. The process for approval of connected transactions must comply with rules and regulations of SET. The
Company clearly defines rules and process for approval of the connected transactions. Conflicted parties have
no voting rights in approving such connected transactions.
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AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Univanich Palm Qil Public Company Limited

I have audited the accompanying balance sheet as at 31 December 2005, and the related statements of income,
changes in shareholders' equity and cash flows for the year then ended of Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited.
The Company's management is responsible for the correctness and completeness of information in these financial
statements. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. The financial
statements of Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited for the year ended 31 December 2004, presented herewith
for comparative purposes, were audited by another auditor in the same firm as myself, whose report dated 21 January
2005, expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements.

I conducted my audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that I
plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. I believe that my audit provides a
reasonable basis for my opinion.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position as at 31 December 2005, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended of Univanich
Palm Oil Public Company Limited in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

1 Bl 1

SUWANNEE BHURIPANYO
Certified Public Accountant
(Thailand) No. 3371
PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Limited

Bangkok
25 February 2006
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited

2004
Notes Baht
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 224,410,573
Trade accounts receivable, net 67,296,957
Inventories, net 5 146,350,687
Other current assets 1,075,718
Total current assets 439,133,935
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Loans to contractors 2,856,697
Palm plantation, net 6 161,818,423
Property, plant and equipment, net 7 729,257,750
Total non-current assets 893,932,870

TOTAL ASSETS 1,333,066,805

The notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited

Balance Sheets
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade accounts payable

Accrued income tax

Accrued expenses

Current portion of provision for employee benefits
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provision for employee benefits

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Share capital

Registered share capital
Ordinary shares
Issued and paid-up share capital
Ordinary shares
Premium on share capital
Retained earnings
Appropriated
Legal reserve
General reserve
Unappropriated

Total shareholders' equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

The notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.

2005 2004
Notes Baht Baht
16,120,929 57,097,515
4,121,352 3,949,274
8 28,625,863 35,285,898
9 8,179,383 6,811,783
19,121,169 13,487,285
76,168,696 116,631,755
9 47,520,617 43 838,217
47,520,617 43,838,217
123,689,313 160,469,972

10
470,000,000 470,000,000
470,000,000 470,000,000
10 267,503,419 267,503,419
11 47,000,000 47,000,000
20,000,000 20,000,000
286,177,912 368,093,414

1,090,681,331

1,172,596,833

1,214,370,644

1,333,066,805
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Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited

2004
Notes Baht
Sales 20 2,548,985,439

Cost of sales (2,005,403,972)

Gross profit 543,581,467
Selling and administrative expenses (147,310,483)
Profit from sales 396,270,984
Other income 3,281,646
Directors' remuneration (5,297,080)
Operating profit before interest expense and income tax 394,255,550
Interest expense -
Operating profit before tax 394,255,550
Income tax (8,985,908)
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 385,269,642
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE 14

Net profit for the year 4.10

The notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited

Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity
For the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004

2005

Issued

and paid-up Premium on

Retained earnings

share capital share capital Appropriated Unappropriated Total

Note Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht

Opening balance 470,000,000 267,503,419 67,000,000 368,093,414  1,172,596,833
Dividend paid during

the year 13 - - - (282,000,000)  (282,000,000)

Net profit for the year - - - 200,084,498 200,084,498

Closing balance 470,000,000 267,503,419 67,000,000 286,177,912  1,090,681,331

2004

Issued

and paid-up Premium on

Retained earnings

share capital share capital Appropriated Unappropriated Total

Note Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht

Opening balance 470,000,000 267,503,419 67,000,000 246,022,572 1,050,525,991
Dividend paid during

the year 13 - - - (263,198,800)  (263,198,800)

Net profit for the year - - - 385,269,642 385,269,642

Closing balance 470,000,000 267,503,419 67,000,000 368,093,414  1,172,596,833

The notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited

Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net profit for the year
Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash provided
by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortisation
Bad debts and doubtful accounts
Allowance for diminution in value of inventories
(Gain) loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment
Allowance for impairment of property, plant and equipment
Increase in provision for employee benefits

Net operating cash flows

before changes in working capital
(Increase) decrease in trade accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in inventories
(Increase) decrease in other current assets
Increase (decrease) in trade accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued income tax
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities
Increase (decrease) in provision for employee benefits
Net cash inflows from operating activities

The notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.

2005 2004
Baht Baht
200,084,498 385,269,642
99,304,898 76,518,261
(2,300,000) 1,000,000
(1,824,538) 500,000
(2,186,105) (1,309,072)
(110,000) -
13,659,441 5,850,000
306,628,194 467,828,831
(1,733,919) (5,336,215)
87,662,327 (23,882,930)
(245,402) 819,860
(46,212,945) 10,177,235
172,078 (5,314,479)
(6,660,035) 5,274,253
5,633,884 3,577,664
(8,609,441) -
336,634,741 453,144,219
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Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited
Statements of Cash Flows (Cont'd)
For the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004
2005 2004
Baht Baht
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from settlement of loans to contractors 1,384,684 1,158,703
Cash payments of loans to contractors (2,273,400) (1,621,000)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 3,809,272 3,522,894
Cash payments for purchascs of property, plant and equipment (140,564,877) (269,756,405)
Cash payments for costs of palm plantation (12,355,168) (13,748,444)
Net cash payments in investing activities (149,999,489) (280,444,252)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment on long-term borrowing - (80,000,000)
Dividends paid (282,000,000) (263,198,800)
Net cash payments in financing activities (282,000,000) (343,198,800)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (95,364,748) (170,498,833)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 224,410,573 394,909,406
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 129,045,825 224,410,573
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION FOR CASH FLOWS:
Interest paid for the year 16,033 80,548
Income tax paid for the year 8,476,858 14,300,387
Non-cash transaction
The principal non-cash transaction for the year ended 31 December 2005 is the purchase of
equipment amounting to Baht 5.24 million (2004: Baht 30.9 million).

The notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Univanich Palm Oill Public Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004

1 General information

Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited (the "Company") was formed on 26 December 1995 from the
amalgamation, according to the Civil and Commercial Code, of Hup Huat Palm Oil Industry Company Limited,
Siam Palm Oil and Refinery Industry Company Limited and Thai Oil Palm Industry and Estate Company
Limited. The Company is a public company limited and is incorporated and domiciled in Thailand. The address
of its registered office is as follows:

68/2 Patipat Road, Talad Yai Sub-District, Muang Phuket District, Phuket 83000, Thailand
The Company has been listed in the Stock Exchange of Thailand since 25 November 2003.

The Company operates principally in Thailand and is engaged in oil palm plantations, palm fruit processing and
seed businesses. As at 31 December 2005, the Company employed 1,023 people (2004 : 964 people).

2 Amalgamation of companies

According to the Civil and Commercial Code, Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited has assumed all of
the assets, liabilities, rights and obligations of the companies amalgamated on the date of amalgamation. However,
as at 31 December 2005, the names on some legal documents, entitlements and agreements of the three
amalgamated companies relating to assets assumed before the companies amalgamated have not yet been
amended to the name of Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited.

3 Accounting policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.

a) Basis of preparation of financial statements
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
under the Accounting Act, B.E. 2543, being those Thai Accounting Standards issued under the Accounting
Profession Act B.E. 2547, and the financial reporting requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission
under the Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535.

As aresults of the Federation of Accounting Profession (FAP) approval of three new accounting standards on
12 May 2005, the Company has adopted TAS 52, "Events After Balance Sheet Date", TAS 53, "Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Assets" and TAS 54, "Discontinuing Operations" in the second quarter
of 2005.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

T
o
Z
<
=
Z
=
ANNUAL REPORT 2005 6



n)

V)

1)

9)

?)

ANNUAL REPORT 2005

3 wlanamsus (m))

mmmmiwmwmmu (G]E])

mmﬂmwmmu“lﬁaa@ﬂammJwmmmmwsmmm"lﬂ“luﬂs mﬁ"lmmmﬁuﬂslwhﬂmmﬁﬂi LUIUMS
uawmwuﬂﬁmmmimmsmlmamwuwamammwmaumwmmmuau inrmLﬂmwﬂmauagﬂmﬂuaumm
uaz wuﬁummnmmmauwiummnm uaz ﬂlauaﬁﬂ“lmm m“l%mﬂsluiamwﬂmamLﬁuammmumﬂan
fiaviiRas U seRuanmannFiauszinums Sunmdravlsznamslasminiumeaunliiaiga
°1um@3ﬂﬁm1!,a$§dﬁ'ls—:ﬂizﬁﬂﬂ“luﬂwﬁu

Y ) Y v H Y
anavilouiien ladsulgane lvdeanassnumsulasunlasmsiaveveyaluilifegiiv

4 1 ' Y
wmsIuatumdingeiaiuannaumstuaungrueiiduniine lunsaifiianumnodausai
v v Yy Y
wiolianuuanalumsannusziieaesnnlvlyaumstuaunagwineniuniun Inedunén

v Y ' i @
awmsuillasumseydannauznssumsvoausEnloiui 25 nuaius w.a. 2549

Y
Mssussela
¥ Y ! ! a ¥ d‘ o =) a ! ¥ a ¥ % ¥ d'
s0'lalsznevadyamauluasduaiinie laodusauSugninnaiuan selanamsnedumsugiie
v [ Y Y EJ Y Y Y
anudsaazranouunuiidumszadesnudunvesdua lalou lfaydeuad

PR
o o

£ )
UIENTV0 laduanamaIna

9/ Y

AULATTIRERN

am/mmimuﬁmmﬂuaﬂmw‘lmu miievitaadus sqilse mmmnmﬁﬁaumuﬂaﬂmmaa‘nnimmauﬁumﬂ
wuammﬂmu“luiwmwﬂmmﬂuﬂﬂﬁvma‘nmmmﬂmu

Y
ﬁummmﬁa

L4

z-mﬂmamaeuammmmmumammammfuu"lmmgmgmsmﬂﬂmmﬁwﬂmummaum mmmmummm

Yy 9 v v
mma&mmmun @m‘nu‘lumwaﬂs ﬂ@’U?’I’Jﬁli1ﬂ1“ﬁﬂlm“’ﬂﬂ"]ﬁnfﬁﬂNG]i\iﬂlﬂﬁl’lﬂlﬂ\iﬂﬂﬂﬁ%@ﬁﬂﬂTHH LFU 'mmum
ﬁuwummﬁummma‘ﬂﬂs ﬂi]‘]Jﬂ’JfJﬂTJ@mﬂ‘]J ﬂ%!ﬁ\ﬂ’ﬂ\iﬁﬁ\i m“hﬁnsmwmqau ag ﬂ'lIffoJGIUﬂ'IEWﬁGI cmﬂumu
mmﬂmmmimmmmmuﬂﬂ@ Mﬁﬂ?ﬁﬂ‘ﬁ‘l/li]ullﬂﬁuﬂi 3J’li1!°’l]"|ﬂiWﬂWlﬂW]’ﬂi]v“lﬂilvlﬂﬁﬂﬂﬂﬂﬁsllﬂﬂ ‘ﬁ'iﬂi]?iﬂ?’l’JEJﬂW

Glmmmmﬂmwaclwaumuufcﬂmiﬂ Llﬁuﬂﬂ%’iﬂﬁﬂuﬂﬁ"lﬂﬂ UTENIE @1qﬂuwaﬂﬁamamaummmammuaum
‘VlaWﬁllfJ maau"lmam ﬁﬁ@Lﬁ@ﬂJﬂmﬂWW

aruihay

auhauaaa s Ay ﬂyunufhu“lmjﬂizﬂaugaﬂ msaumhauiazmsUuan s meUiumnau uas

yiseath miﬂgﬂﬂmau msﬂsm‘?&vﬁﬁmazﬂﬁiﬁﬂﬂ ﬁ?%ﬂus;unuﬁgﬁ'm{mh”umsﬂgﬂﬂwayugau@iﬁ@"hﬂﬁwawaﬂ

ﬁluﬂizﬁq;uﬂm(ﬂv:wawa@ («fﬂﬂ;‘szﬂmaﬂﬂﬂﬂizmm 2-31) ﬁmﬁu@?unumuﬂmdu u?ﬁﬂﬁﬂgunumuﬂm(u

Lﬂuﬁyunumim%Naﬂmfwﬁwmﬁmyuﬂmdushiywaw?m Tagla3iaunsaneluszozm 20 7 wiedasmneny
soznafimasvesdumuiineves tauasmaudladnn




3 Accounting policies (Cont'd)

a) Basis of preparation of financial statements (Cont'd)
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Thai generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
amounts of revenues and expenses in the reported periods. Although these estimates are based on management's
best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may differ from those estimates.

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in presentation in the
current year.

An English version of the financial statements have been prepared from the statutory financial statements that
are in the Thai language. In the event of a conflict or a difference in interpretation between the two languages,
the Thai language statutory financial statements shall prevail.

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Director on 25 February 2006.
b) Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the invoiced value for the sale of goods net of discounts. Revenue from sales of goods is
recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred to the buyer.

Other revenues are generally recognised on the accrual basis.

¢) Trade accounts receivable
Trade accounts receivable are carried at anticipated realisable value. An allowance for doubtful accounts is
made for doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the period end. Bad debts
incurred during the year are recognised in the year in which they are identified.

d) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value, cost being determined on weighted average
basis. The cost of purchase comprises both the purchase price and costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of the inventory, such as transportation charge. The cost of finished goods comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production overheads, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal
operating activities. Net realisable value is the estimate of the selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less the costs of completion and selling expenses. Allowance for diminution in value is made, where necessary,
for obsolete, slow-moving, and defective inventories.

e) Palm plantation
Palm plantation are stated at cost. All costs comprising mainly palm felling and clearing, land terracing and
drainage, palm planting, weeding and fertilizing involved during the immature period until the palms are ready
for commercial harvesting at approximately 2-3 years, are capitalised. The Company amortises palm plantation
cost after the commercial harvesting, using a straight-line basis, over a period of 20 years or over the remaining
period of the concessions to which it relates, whichever is shorter.
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3 Accounting policies (Cont'd)

f) Property. plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided for
all fixed assets other than land using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Land improvements 20 years
Buildings and plants 20 years
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
Motor vehicles 5-10 years

Furniture, fixture and office equipment 5 - 10 years

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount. Estimated recoverable amount is the higher of the anticipated discounted
cash flows from the continuing use of the asset and the amount obtainable from the sale of the asset less any
costs of disposal.

Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by reference to their carrying
amount and are taken into account in determining the net profit.

Interest costs on borrowings to finance the construction of property, plant and equipment are capitalised as
part of cost of the asset, during the period of time required to complete and prepare the property for its
intended use. All other borrowing costs are expensed.

The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalised is the weighted
average interest rate applicable to the outstanding borrowings during the year. Where funds are borrowed
specifically for the acquisition, construction or production of property, plant or equipment, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation on that asset is determined from the actual borrowing costs incurred
on that borrowings during the year less any investment income on the temporary investment of those
borrowings.

Expenditures for additions, renewals and betterments, which result in a substantial increase in an asset's
current replacement value, are capitalised. Repair and maintenance costs are recognised as expenses when
incurred.

g) Provision for employee benefits
The Company has employee benefit schemes to provide benefit to the employees who resign or retire from the
Company after working for the Company for the period or at age as specified in the employee benefit
schemes. The Company has set up the provision as at the balance sheet only for the employees who are entitled
to such benefits at the balance sheet date. Changes in the liabilities arising from salary adjustments, changes in
number of employees, and the rate of benefit are charged to income statement when it incurred.

h) Provident fund
The Company operates a provident fund, being a defined contribution plan, the assets for which are held in a
separate trustee-administered fund. The provident fund is funded by payments from employees and by the
Company.

The Company's contributions to the provident fund are charged to the income statement in the year to which
they relate.

ANNUAL REPORT 2005




3 Waamstiad (o)

)

b))

H))

<)

ANNUAL REPORT 2005

,
Uszanamsniiauoy
m‘umwuuwﬂﬂswmmmmuﬁumaummﬂu'lﬂ"lﬂﬂaumynummmimﬂmiwmwuiuﬂmuummgwma
mamﬂmiaunmaurﬂuwaﬁmummmﬂm@mmiuam nmwnwumﬂanmﬂmmwa“lwmmamaﬂmwmm
mamwﬁzmizgﬂwmmzﬂm’mm@1mfnwmmsaﬂszmmmﬁmmmwma BT RTEL TRV PR M 9 0
Funsneusnmanninodienslauaumang lasuesaiueuiie laneiiszlszinameviau e

519M31UY luanatuasmlssmnea

mymﬂmﬂﬁwmi‘umﬂuﬁﬂamummmJi mafiaduluse mwﬂgﬂumuummmmmamﬂaeJu o
SuiiiRasens ﬂﬂnuﬂﬁmwmummammwammummNﬂiwmﬁ"hmwm swmﬁmﬂmmwuﬂmﬂnﬂu
Nuummmmummﬂaﬂumwuﬂuammw aum‘wﬂua‘”wuaumﬂum’mu“luﬁﬂamummwﬂswmﬁ Fanawide
u uiinmauga uasnuiuduumamsanuanden w Suib muﬂﬂnyuaﬂwumﬁmmwwuummawm
mm"l’;n,‘wmJmﬂuwaﬂszwummsmﬂwuummﬂmmzﬂmmummmmmamﬂaﬂumwuﬂuaaulmuw
ﬁﬂmaz611mnu‘ﬁgﬁﬂfumi"uw%‘afn'1ﬂ@ﬁwszﬁgﬂuﬁumwéwﬂﬁzmﬁLLa3ﬁgﬁﬂinﬂmmﬂmﬂ'ﬁuvﬁvmhazwﬁyﬁuﬁgﬂu

v A 2 ! yw KX v A o
@]'Jlxiuﬂﬂﬂﬁ'lﬁblﬂﬂuﬂﬂﬂuﬂ 6l"LN‘]Jﬂ'lm]ii"’IJ'IWI/‘!“L!

RUaaLariIeMINeUNIaUEn

' v v 1 ' Y
Ruaauazemaiisumiiuaa lavaaseglusugansimmu Quaauazsiemsiieumiduds Jsznouaiy
' ' Ed ' [ v v
Ruaaluiie QuinsunaslsznnaeauienunieRuauszszdudunianmaassgalunmsnlasuile
uazliogaanaetiuua uesnanasuduliuduszeznarmudouniomnn

v
=}

T I152e2e1) - nTAUNUTH l“ﬂum"]ﬂ

7]

' P I I v ' ' vy %Y o '
ﬂJﬂHLGMﬁLWﬁWfJIﬂEJVIﬂ’JHJLﬁfNL!,ﬁ“’N’GWIE]‘]J!,muﬂm\iﬂ’ﬂmﬂu!fﬂ1%6Qﬁ3u1ﬁmu€‘lﬂﬁ]fﬁlﬂﬂEJ‘G]:‘I’TL"M ﬁ]ﬂlﬂuﬁiy]mﬂl"lﬂ
v v

a

v Y '
U Nuﬁmmfﬂwmﬂ“lﬂﬁﬂujmuwmﬁnummﬁ]zﬁuﬁﬂ“luwfi’ﬂimmnuiﬂﬂi%j‘%‘;ﬁumNmaaﬂmqmmﬁtyqn
i

€e

v Y H Ed ' ' v ' v v Y ' b4 v Y E
mlrneinatunamssnidndyunanivauneuruaeigmss sy iolsunaesoeluung v sziudin

&7

et ! ey
lﬂuﬂﬂﬂﬁ]181‘“5@1Ji$8181l’3’cﬂﬂﬂlu"]ﬁ/lmiilﬂlaﬂuulﬂﬂ"llu

Quifupa

a . o, ~ ' = o A o ° Ya T A Yy wa =
Ruifuwaaieaz lusugaunneziinmseniia lashlseguadiyilsznilvesydeounioie lasumseylialash
szguamznssumsviinlunsainimsdsemensuiiumasenienma

A a g Y C% =
ﬂWENu"lﬂ'iE]ﬂﬁ@]ﬂUﬂlGlf

mw”lmmmyuu“lﬂmqmﬂua ﬂWBNullﬂﬂNi‘U‘ﬂ% Lﬂﬂ”UL!GI,L!@u1ﬂ@]ﬁ]1ﬂﬂallﬁﬂﬁ1ﬂ%’)ﬂﬁ’)i W’JN%WHﬂWB‘UﬂQ
ﬁuﬂﬁWﬂLlﬁ 'WL!ﬁ‘Ll LUae uammmummu wamwaﬂﬁnmu“lwmmﬂmﬂmmawuﬁmﬂﬂ cqYy ﬂ?!N’E]fﬂiﬂﬂllﬂﬂW

aummmammzmsmﬂﬂ%mﬂau Q|




3 Accounting policies (Cont'd)

)

h);

k)

D

Other provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
of the amount can be made. Where the Company expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions,
except where a transaction is hedged by a forward contract, in which case the contract rate is used. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated into Baht at the
exchange rates ruling at that date, with the exception of receivables covered by forward contracts which are
accounted for in Baht at the contracts rates. Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, are recognised in
the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of

three months or less.

Leases - when the company is a leasee
Leases not transferring a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee are classified

as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the statement of income on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be made
to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which termination takes place.

m) Dividends

Dividends payable are not accounted for until they have been approved at the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders or by the Board of Directors meeting in case of interim dividend declaration.

Deferred income tax

The Company does not recognise income tax payable or receivable in future periods in respect of temporary
differences arising from differences between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. The principal temporary differences arise from allowance for doubtful accounts,
allowance for diminution in value of inventories and other provisions.
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4 Trade accounts receivable, net

Trade accounts receivable
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

Trade accounts receivable, net

2005 2004

Baht Baht
93,030,876 91,296,957
(21,700,000) (24,000,000)
71,330,876 67,296,957

Outstanding trade accounts receivable as at 31 December can be analysed by their age as

follows:

Up to 3 months

3 - 6 months

6 - 12 months

Over 12 months

Total

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

5 Inventories, net

Palm fruit

Palm oil

By products from palm oil production
Palm seeds and seedlings

Spare parts and general supplies

Less: Allowance for diminution in value

of spare parts

Allowance for diminution in value of other

inventories
Inventories, net

2005 2004

Baht Baht
72,237,962 68,715,911
- 598,416
20,792,914 21,982,630
93,030,876 91,296,957
(21,700,000) (24,000,000)
71,330,876 67,296,957
2005 2004

Baht Baht

- 170,252
26,389,945 112,871,522
3,073,113 4,596,731
8,362,757 7,669,433
25,487,083 25,667,287
63,312,898 150,975,225
(2,800,000) (4,200,000)

- (424,538)
60,512,898 146,350,687
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6 Palm plantation, net

At 31 December 2004
Cost

Less: Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

For the year ended 31 December 2005

Opening net book amount
Additions

Transfer in (out)
Amortisation charge
Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2005
Cost

Less: Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

Palm Immature

plantation palms Total
Baht Baht Baht
253,779,041 14,618,796 = 268,397,837
(106,579,414) - (106,579.,414)
147,199,627 14,618,796 = 161,818,423
147,199,627 14,618,796 = 161,818,423
952,640 11,402,528 12,355,168

9,362,557 (9,362,557) -
(12,578,794) - (12,578,794)
144,936,030 16,658,767 = 161,594,797
261,908,096 16,658,767 = 278,566,863
(116,972,066) - (116,972,066)
144,936,030 16,658,767 = 161,594,797

The Company's plantation is made on both the Company's own land, concession land and
lease land. The land concession were issued by the Government for development of oil
palm plantation. Details of land under concession and under operating lease agreements
as at 31 December 2005 arc as follows:

Area per Planted
Name of estate Type Terms contract (Rai)  area (Rai)
Chean Vanich  Concession Granted for 30 years from
22 April 1983. 20,000 14,241
TOPI Concession Renewed for 30 years
from 19 November 1993. 8,250 8,250
TOPI Lease Leased from Co-operative
Promotion Department for
30 years, at the rates of
Bht 100 to Bht 300 per
Rai per year, commencing
on 27 April 1994, 2,500 2,500
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8 Accrued expenses

Accrued expenses consist of:

2004
Baht

5,268,898
4,950,190
3,597,716
15,416,965
6,052,129

35,285,898

2004
Baht

6,811,783
43,838,217

50,650,000

2004
Baht

44,800,000
5,850,000

2005
Baht
Accrued transportation expenses 4,472,520
Accrued contractors cost 4,300,221
Accrued initial public offering expenses -
Accrued employee expenses 15,318,653
Others 4,534,469
28,625,863
9 Provision for employee benefits
2005
Baht
Current portion due within one year 8,179,383
Long-term portion due more than one year 47,520,617
Total 55,700,000
The movement on provision for employee benefits is as follows:
2005
Baht
Beginning balance 50,650,000
Additional provision for employee benefits 13,659,441
Utilised during the year (8,609,441)
Ending balance 55,700,000

50,650,000

The Company has accounted for provision for employee benefits for employees who are
entitled to the scheme of separation pay or retirement benefit of the Company. The
provision is accrued only for the people who are entitled at the balance sheet date and is
calculated by based on current salary with the rate as determined by the Company’s
policy. The rate will be adjusted depending on the lengths of years of services.
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10 Share capital and premium on share capital

Premium
Ordinary on share
Number of shares capital Total
shares Baht Baht Baht
At 31 December 2003 94,000,000 470,000,000 267,503,419 737,503,419
Issuc of shares - - - -
At 31 December 2004 94,000,000 470,000,000 267,503,419 737,503,419
Issue of shares - - - -
At 31 December 2005 94,000,000 470,000,000 267,503,419 737,503,419

The total authorised and registered number of ordinary shares is 94,000,000 shares (2004
94,000,000 shares) with a par value of Baht 5 per share (2004: Baht 5 per share). The
total issued shares is 94,000,000 shares (2004: 94,000,000 shares) with a par value of
Baht 5 per share (2004: Baht 5 per share). All issued shares are fully paid.

11 Legal reserve

2005 2004
Baht Baht
At beginning of the year 47,000,000 47,000,000
Appropriation during the year - -
At end of the year 47,000,000 47,000,000

Under the Public Companics Act, the Company is required to set aside as statutory
reserve at least 5 percent of its net profit after accumulated deficit brought forward (if
any) until the reserve is not less than 10 percent of the registered capital.

12 Operating profit

The following expenses classified by nature, have been charged in arriving at operating

profit.
2005 2004
Baht Baht
Staff costs 137,762,538 138,613,678
Depreciation and amortisation 99,304,898 76,518,261
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13 Dividends

At the Board of Directors' meeting held on 11 August 2005, the directors approved an interim dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2005 of Baht 1.30 per share, totaling Baht 122,200,000. The interim dividend was
paid in September 2005.

At the Annual General Meeting on 28 April 2005, the shareholders approved a dividend for the year ended 31
December 2004 of Baht 3 per share, totaling Baht 282,000,000. The Company had paid an interim dividend
amounting to Baht 122,200,000 in 2004 and paid the dividend of Baht 159,800,000 in May 2005.

On 11 August 2004 the Board of Directors declared a payment of interim dividend for the six-month period
ended 30 June 2004 of Baht 1.30 per share, totalling Baht 122,200,000. This interim dividend was paid in
September 2004.

At the Annual General Meeting on 29 April 2004, the shareholders approved a dividend for the year ended 31
December 2003 of Baht 3.50 per share, totalling Baht 306,702,400. The Company had paid an interim
dividend amounting to Baht 165,702,400 in 2003 and paid the dividend of Baht 140,998,800 in May 2004.
The difference of Baht 1,200 between dividend declared and dividend paid results from one incorrectly
registered shareholder.

14 Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year as follows:

2005 2004
Net profit for the year (Baht) 200,084,498 385,269,642
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year (shares) 94,000,000 94,000,000
Basic earnings per share (Baht) 2.13 4.10

There are no outstanding potential dilutive ordinary shares, warrants, in issue for the years ended 31 December
2005 and 2004.
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15 Provident fund

The Company established a contributory registered provident fund, in accordance with the Provident Fund
Act B.E. 2530. The registered provident fund was approved by the Ministry of Finance.

Under the plan, employees must contribute 5 percent of their basic salary, with 5 percent of the employees'
basic salary based on employees' service years to be matched by the Company. The Company appointed an
authorized fund manager to manage the fund in accordance with the terms and conditions prescribed in the
Ministerial Regulation No. 2 (B.E. 2532) issued under the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530.

In 2005 the Company contributions to the provident fund which were charged to expense amounting to Baht
1,169,980 (2004 : Baht 1,219,938).

16 Commitments

Asat 31 December 2005, the Company had commitment relating to capital expenditure contract for construction
of building amounted to Baht 1.18 million (2004: construction of a new plant USD 0.14 million).

17 Letters of guarantee

As at 31 December 2005, the Company has letters of guarantee issued by bank on behalf of the Company
amounting to Baht 2.58 million for electricity and telephone usage (2004 : Baht 2.58 million).

18 Related party transactions

Enterprises and individuals that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are
controlled by, or are under common control with, the company, including holding companies, subsidiaries and
fellow subsidiaries are related parties of the Company. Associates and individuals owning, directly or indirectly,
an interest in the voting power of the Company that gives them significant influence over the enterprise, key
management personnel, including directors and officers of the Company and close members of the family of
these individuals and companies associated with these individuals also constitute related parties.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship,
and not merely the legal form.
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18 Related party transactions (Cont'd)

Mr. Apirag Vanich and members of his family are major shareholders. Majority of related
companies are controlled by Mr. Apirag Vanich.

a) Sales of goods

For the years ended
31 December

2005 2004
Baht Baht
Sales of goods 109,480 97,978

The policy for related party transaction is as follows:
- Sales of goods are made in the normal course of business and at market prices.

b) Purchases of goods and services

For the years ended
31 December

2005 2004
Baht Baht
Purchases of goods 4,574,064 4,471,350
Purchases of services 626,042 899,005

The policy for related party transactions are as follows:

- Purchases of palm fruits are made in the normal course of business and at market
prices.

- Port charges for export shipping are made in the normal course of business and at
market prices.

¢) Outstanding balances arising from purchases of goods

2005 2004
Baht Baht
Payable to related company - 422,304

Payable to related company was included in trade accounts payable.
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19 Financial instruments

The principal financial risks faced by the Company at 31 December 2005 are exchange rate risk and credit risk.
Credit risk arises when sales are made on credit terms.

Exchange rate risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk since certain sales are entered into in foreign currencies. The
Company minimises the potential adverse effects of fluctuation currency values on the financial performance
of the Company by using forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge all such export sales currency risk.

Foreign currency forward contracts protect the Company from movements in exchange rates by establishing
the rate at which a foreign currency accounts receivable will be realised. The foreign currency forward
contracts are not separately recognised in the financial statements at fair value but the contract rate is applied
to the accounts receivable at initial recognition. The fee incurred in establishing each agreement is amortised
over the contract period.

As at 31 December 2005 and 2004, the Company has no outstanding foreign currency forward contracts.

Trading of financial instruments for speculative purposes is prohibited. Forward foreign exchange
counterparties are confined to the Company's bank.

Credit risk

The Company's exposure to credit risk consists of deposits at financial institutions and trade receivables. The
Company has a concentration of credit risk with respect to receivables from customers in manufacturing
industry. In addition, foreign currency forward contracts are entered into, and deposits are placed, with high
credit quality financial institutions.

Fair values
The carrying amounts of the Company's cash and deposits at financial institutions, trade receivables and
payables and loans to contractors approximate to their fair values.
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20 Promotional privileges

Sales, classified as promoted and non-promoted activities, for the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004
are summarised as follows:

2005
Non-promoted
Promoted activities activities Total
Baht Baht Baht
Export sales 242,114,136 73,675,005 315,789,141
Domestic sales 1,427,600,875 368,877,038 1,796,477,913
Total sales 1,669,715,011 442,552,043 2,112,267,054
2004
Non-promoted
Promoted activities activities Total
Baht Baht Baht
Export sales 326,625,049 179,512,124 506,137,173
Domestic sales 1,461,936,625 580,911,641 2,042,848,266
Total sales 1,788,561,674 760,423,765 2,548,985,439

On 16 October 1996, the Company received approval for promotion privileges from the Board of Investment
(BOI) for the extraction of palm oil. The main privileges include the exemption from import duties on machinery,
exemption from corporate income tax for the promoted activities for the period of 8 years from the date
income is first derived (5 September 1997), and further exemption of corporate income tax at the rate of 50%
of the prevailing normal tax rate for another 5 years after the first exemption period which was expired on 4
September 2005.

On 29 September 1999, the Company was approved further promotional privileges from the BOI for the
capacity expansion of extraction of palm oil. The main privileges include the exemption from import duties on
machinery, exemption from corporate income tax for the promoted activities for the period of 8 years from
the date income is first derived (1 November 2000), and further exemption of corporate income tax at the rate
of 50% of the prevailing normal tax rate for another 5 years after the first exemption period.
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20 Promotional privileges (Cont'd)

On 7 June 2000, the Company received approval for promotion privileges from the BOI for extraction of
palm oil at a new factory. The main privileges include the exemption of import duties on machinery, exemption
of corporate income tax for the promoted activities for the period of 8 years from the date income is first
derived (14 October 2004), and further exemption of corporate income tax at the rate of 50% of the prevailing
normal tax rate for another 5 years after the first exemption period.

The Company must comply with conditions and restrictions indicated in the promotional certificate.
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